THE ARKANSAS CITIZENS' REDISTRICTING COMMISSION AMENDMENT

To the Honorable John Thurston, Secretary of State of the State of Arkansas: We the undersigned registered voters of the State of Arkansas, respectfully propose the following amendment to the Constitution of the State, and by this, our petition, order that the same be submitted to the people of said state, to the end that the same may be adopted, enacted, or rejected by the vote of the registered voters of state at a regular general election to be held on the 8th day of November, 2022, and each of us for himself or herself says: I have personally signed this petition; I am a registered voter of the State of Arkansas, and my printed name, date of birth, residence, city or town of residence, and date of signing this petition are correctly written after my signature. The Popular Name is The Arkansas Citizens' Redistricting Commission Amendment and the ballot title is attached or affixed hereto.

FOR	OFFICE USE ONLY				
Valid of					
Ву	Date				

				10:11/0:1/20:0:11/20:0:1			
	Signature	Printed Name	Date of Birth	Residence (Street Address)	City or Town of Residence	County of Residence	Date of Signing
1							
2							
3						`	
4							
5		FILED					
6		DEC 2.8-2021					
7		Arkansas Secretary of State	Ė				
8							
9							
10							·

VOTERS REGISTERED IN

State of Arkansas, County of,	(county where notary signs)				
1	being swom, state that each of the				
of my knowledge and belief, each signature is of Arkansas, in the County listed. At all times of the Popular Name, Ballot Title, and text with My current residence address is correctly sta	ne to this sheet of the petition in my presence. To the best is genuine and each signer is a registered voter of the State s during the circulation of this signature sheet, an exact copy as attached to this signature sheet.				
Signature					
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Current Residence					
Indicate one: () Paid Canvasser () Volunteer/Unpaid Canvasser				

On thisday of	,2022, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally
hat s/he executed the same i	well known to me (or satisfactorily proven by identification e person described in the foregoing Canvasser Affidavit and acknowledged in the capacity of a Canvasser for the purposes offulfilling legal requirements Arkansas; and that I personally witnessed the signature of the Canvasser.
Signature of Notary	
My Commission Expires	
Residence County of Notary_	
	[Notary Seal Above]

COUNTY

- 1. The Arkansas Constitution gives Arkansas citizens the power to (a) initiate legislation by petition of 8% of the legal voters or constitutional amendments by petition of 10% of legal voters, or (b) order the referendum against any general act or any item of an appropriation bill or measure passed by the General Assembly by petition of 6% of legal voters. A proposed measure must be submitted at a regular election. Referendum petitions may be referred at special elections on petition of 15% of the registered voters. Any measure submitted to the people becomes law when approved by a majority of the votes cast upon such measure.
- 2. Only registered voters may sign. All signatures must be in the signer's own handwriting and in the presence of the person circulating the petition. Each petition part should contain only the signatures of voters residing in a single county.
- 3. Printed name, date of birth, residence, city or town of residence, and date of signing must be given. If a petition signer needs assistance with this information due to disability, another person may print the signer's information and that person shall sign and print their name in the margin of the petition.
- 4. A canyasser must be both a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State of Arkanses.
- 5. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 7-9-103, a person commits a Class A misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to \$2,500 and confinement of up to one year in Jall, if the person knowingly prints a name, address, or birth date other than his or her own to a petition or prints the date of signing for another person unless the signer requires assistance due to disability and the person compiles with § 7-9-103.
- 6. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 5-55-601 and 7-9-109, a person commits a Class D felony, punishable by a fine of up to \$10,000 and up to six (6) years imprisonment, if the person engages in any of the following activities:
 - (1) If the person knowingly:
 - (A) Signs a name other than his or her name to a petition;
 - (B) Signs his or her name more than one (1) time to a petition; or
 - (C) Signs a petition when he or she is not legally entitled to sign the petition;
 - (2) If the person acting as a canvasser, notary, sponsor, as defined under § 7-9-101, or agent of a sponsor.
 - (A) Signs a name other than his or her own to a petition;
 - (B) Prints a name, address, or birth date other than his or her own to a petition unless the signor requires assistance due to disability and the person compiles with § 7-9-103;
 - (C) Solicits or obtains a signature to a petition knowing that the person signing is not qualified to sign the petition;
 - (D) Knowingly pays a person any form of compensation in exchange for signing a petition as a petitioner;
 - (E) Accepts or pays money or anything of value for obtaining signatures on a petition when the person acting as a canvasser, sponsor, or agent of a sponsor knows that the person acting as a canvasser's name or address is not included on the sponsor's list filed with the Secretary of State under § 7-9-601; or
 - (F) Knowingly misrepresents the purpose and effect of the petition or the measure affected for the purpose of causing a person to sign a petition;
 - (3) If the person acting as a canvasser knowingly makes a false statement on a petition verification form;
 - (4) If the person acting as a sponsor files a petition or a part of a petition with the official charged with verifying the signatures knowing that the petition or part of the petition contains one (1) or more false or fraudulent signatures unless each false or fraudulent signature is clearly stricken by the sponsor before filing; or
 - (5) If the person acting as a canvasser witnesses signatures on a petition part but knowingly allows another canvasser who did not witness all signatures on a petition part to execute a false verification affidavit with respect to that petition part.
- 7. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 7-9-601, a person commits a Class A misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to \$2,500 and confinement of up to one year in jail, if the person pays or offers to pay a person, or receives payment or agrees to receive payment, on a basis related to the number of signatures obtained on a statewide initiative petition or statewide referendum petition.

Arkansas Attorney General

De May

Leslie Rutledge

POPULAR NAME:

The Arkansas Citizens' Redistricting Commission Amendment

BALLOT TITLE:

An amendment to the Constitution repealing and amending Sections 1, 4, and 5 of Article 8 of the Constitution to create a Citizens' Redistricting Commission, consisting of nine Commissioners who are registered voters in Arkansas, that will replace the Board of Apportionment, consisting of the Governor, Secretary of State, and Attorney General for the redistricting and apportionment of legislative districts, and the General Assembly for the redistricting and apportionment of congressional districts; providing the Commission shall apportion and redistrict congressional and legislative districts in 2023, 2031 and after the census every ten years thereafter; providing Commission meetings be advertised and public; requiring the Secretary of State to publish the Commission's work product and redistricting maps; providing records of communications of the Commissioners, Commission staff, and outside consultants relating to the Commission's duties be public records; requiring persons receiving income or reimbursement to influence Commission action to publicly disclose such fact; providing any registered Arkansas voter may apply for the Commission but disqualifying anyone who, within the immediately preceding five years, has served as an elected or appointed federal, state, county or city official, registered lobbyist or officer of a political party, or has been employed by a registered lobbyist, political party, political campaign or political action committee, or is related by blood or marriage to a disqualified person; providing for an application requiring statement of the applicant's qualifications, residential address, and political party affiliation or lack of party affiliation; requiring the Secretary of State to prepare and advertise the application; providing applicants be selected by a panel appointed by the Arkansas Supreme Court Chief Justice, with consideration of racial, gender, and geographical diversity, of three retired Supreme Court Justices and Court of Appeals Judges, and circuit judges if necessary to fill the panel; requiring the panel by majority decision to place the applicants into pools based on party affiliation and choose thirty applicants from the pool affiliated with the party with the largest representation in the General Assembly, thirty from the pool affiliated with the party with the next-largest representation in the General Assembly, and thirty who are not affiliated with the largest or next-largest party; providing the chosen applicants be publicly disclosed, and that the Governor and the parliamentary leaders of the parties with the largest and next-largest representation in the state House of Representatives and Senate may each eliminate up to two applicants from each pool; providing the panel shall then randomly select three applicants from each pool to serve as Commissioners, and providing for random replacement draws if necessary to ensure at least one Commissioner is selected from each congressional district, and that the panel shall fill any Commission vacancy; requiring Commissioner terms to end when a new Commission is convened and prohibiting Commissioners from holding elected office or serving as a registered lobbyist while a Commissioner and for three years thereafter; requiring the Commission to elect its chair and vice chair from different pools; providing a quorum for any meeting is seven Commissioners, and requiring attendance and voting in person and not by proxy; requiring at least two votes from each pool to approve any final redistricting map and six votes to approve any other Commission act; requiring the Secretary of State to provide the Commission census and election data and a means for public comment and proposal of maps; requiring any congressional district to have a population as equal as practical to the population of the state as reported in the census divided by the number of districts to be established; requiring any map for a state House of Representatives or Senate district to vary by no more than three percent from the population of the state divided by the number of state House of Representatives and state Senate seats, respectively; requiring the Commission to conduct at least one public meeting in each congressional district and to publish three redistricting maps of congressional seats and three redistricting maps of state House and Senate seats, with a written report of the basis for the districts; requiring maps be drawn not to favor or disfavor any political party when viewed on a statewide basis; directing, to the extent practicable, districts be contiguous, not deny or abridge the right to vote on account of race or language, be reasonably compact, and except as required to meet the other criteria, not divide cities or counties, and as feasible after satisfying the preceding criteria, promote competition among political parties; requiring the Commission to certify its final maps, and the respective populations and boundaries, to the Secretary of State, which shall become binding unless, within thirty days, a petition for review is filed in the Supreme Court, in which case the apportionment becomes effective thirty days after the Commission certifies to the Secretary of State any revision pursuant to the Supreme Court's mandate; providing reasonable reimbursement of panelists' and Commissioners' expenses related to their duties and a per diem of up to \$200, subject to increase by the General Assembly; requiring the General Assembly to appropriate moneys, in no case less than \$750,000, for the Commission's duties, and providing, to the extent the Commission requires moneys prior to such appropriation, the Commission shall receive such moneys from the Constitutional Officers Fund; providing the Supreme Court have original jurisdiction to require by mandamus the Chief Justice, panel, Secretary of State, and Commission to perform their duties; providing references to the Board of Apportionment in the Constitution shall refer to the Citizens' Redistricting Commission; and repealing Arkansas Code §§ 7-2-101 through 105.

THE ARKANSAS CITIZENS' REDISTRICTING COMMISSION AMENDMENT

(1) Article 8, Section 1 of the Constitution of Arkansas is repealed and amended to state as follows:

Citizens' Redistricting Commission created - Membership

SECTION 1. Purpose.

A Commission of nine Commissioners to be regularly appointed in accordance with the provisions hereof and known as "The Citizens' Redistricting Commission" is hereby created. It shall be the Commission's imperative duty to apportion and redistrict districts for representatives in the United States House of Representatives, the state House of Representatives and the state Senate.

SECTION 2. Transparency.

The Commission shall protect the public trust and discharge its imperative duty through a transparent process. All meetings, whether formal or informal, special or regular, of the Commission shall be advertised and open to the public. The Secretary of State shall maintain and electronically publish as soon as practicable all Commission work product, and alternate and final maps. All records of communications of the Commissioners, and Commission staff and outside consultants, that relate to the Commission's imperative duty shall be deemed public records. Any person who receives income or reimbursement to directly or indirectly communicate with a Commissioner to

influence Commission action shall publicly disclose such fact prior to taking such action.

SECTION 3. Eligibility requirements.

Each Commissioner shall be an Arkansas registered voter. No person may serve or continue to serve as a Commissioner if within the preceding five years the person:

- 1. has served as an elected federal, state, city, or county official;
- 2. has served as an appointed federal or state official;
- has served as a registered lobbyist;
- 4. has served as an officer of a political party;
- 5. has served as an employee of a registered lobbyist, political party, political campaign committee, or political action committee; or
- 6. was, by blood or marriage, the spouse, child, parent, or sibling, of any of the foregoing.

SECTION 4. Application Process.

A. No later than January 1, 2023 and December 1 of the subsequent years concurrent with the federal census, the Chief Justice of the Arkansas Supreme Court shall designate a panel of three, and fill any vacancies thereof, to screen applicants for appointment to the Commission. In making appointments to the panel, the Chief Justice shall consider geographic, racial, and gender diversity. The panelists shall be appointed from among retired Justices of the Supreme Court and

retired Judges of the Court of Appeals, and if necessary to appoint three panelists, retired Judges of the Circuit Courts, who are able and willing to serve.

- B. The Secretary of State shall advertise statewide the opportunity to serve on the Commission and develop an application form consistent with the provisions hereof no later than January 15, 2023 and subsequently January 15 of the year immediately following the federal census. The application form shall require the applicant to state under penalty of perjury (i) that the applicant is eligible to serve as a Commissioner, and (ii) the applicant's residential address, political party affiliation or lack of political party affiliation, age, gender, and race or ethnicity.
- Eligible persons may apply to serve as a Commissioner no later than March 1, 2023 and subsequently March 1 of each year immediately following the federal census. No later than April 1, 2023 and subsequently April 1 immediately following the federal census, the panel shall by majority decision select thirty eligible applicants from each of the following three pools: one pool of applicants affiliated with the political party having the largest number of representatives in the General Assembly, one pool of applicants affiliated with the political party having the second-largest number of representatives in the General Assembly, and one pool of applicants affiliated with other political parties or no political party. In selecting applicants for the pools, the panel shall make a good faith effort to ensure that the pools are, insofar as possible, geographically and demographically representative of the population of the state. The panel shall publish the name and application of each selected applicant. Within ten days thereafter, the below shall each, in the following descending order, have the right to eliminate no

more than two applicants from each pool of applicants:

- 1. the Governor;
- 2. the parliamentary leader of the political party having the largest number of representatives in the state House of Representatives;
- 3. the parliamentary leader of the political party having the second-largest number of representatives in the state House of Representatives;
- 4. the parliamentary leader of the political party having the largest number of representatives in the state Senate; and
- 5. the parliamentary leader of the political party having the second-largest number of representatives in the state Senate.
- D. The panel shall randomly draw three applicants from those remaining in each pool, for a total of nine. If the draw results in there being any congressional district in which no drawn applicant resides, then the panel shall conduct and repeat the following replacement draws as necessary to result in three Commissioners being selected from each of the three pools, with at least one Commissioner residing in each congressional district:
- 1. The panel shall remove from consideration a randomly selected applicant from the congressional district (or districts) having the greatest number of drawn applicants.
- 2. The panel shall randomly draw from the same pool as the removed applicant a replacement applicant residing in an unrepresented congressional district.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the panel shall not conduct, or shall cease conducting, replacement draws if there are not enough applicants from the unrepresented congressional district(s) to ensure the selection of at least one

Commissioner from each congressional district.

E. The panel shall randomly select the Commissioners no later than May 1. The panel shall fill any vacancy on the Commission by majority decision from the applicants remaining in the pool with the vacancy, maintaining, to the extent possible, representatives from each congressional district, and shall reconvene as necessary until the next federal census.

SECTION 5. Office and tenure.

Each Commissioner shall take office upon taking the regular oath of office provided in the Constitution. Each Commissioner shall serve until a new Commission is convened following the next federal census. During the tenure of office and for three years thereafter, no Commissioner may hold elected or appointed office in the legislative or executive branch or register as a lobbyist.

SECTION 6. Officers.

At the first meeting of the Commission the Commission shall elect one Commissioner to serve as Chair and another to serve as Vice-Chair. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall not have been selected from the same applicant pool.

SECTION 7. Meetings and Actions of the Commission.

A. Seven Commissioners, including at least the Chair or Vice-Chair, constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Commission. Commissioners must attend and vote in person, and not by proxy. Meetings shall be scheduled by the Chair or Vice-Chair as needed for the

discharge of the Commission's duties.

- B. Actions of the Commission require approval as follows:
- 1. Approval of a final district map requires six or more affirmative votes of the Commissioners, including at least two affirmative votes from Commissioners selected from each of the three pools.
- 2. All other actions of the Commission require six or more affirmative votes of the Commissioners.
- (2) Article 8, Section 4 of the Constitution of Arkansas is repealed and amended to state as follows:

Duties of Commission

SECTION 1. Information.

The Secretary of State shall as soon as practicable provide to the Commission census and election data required to discharge its duties. All information provided by the Secretary of State shall be fair, impartial, and complete. The Secretary of State shall also establish multiple methods for the public to provide comments and propose alternate maps for consideration by the Commissioners.

SECTION 2. Basis of districts.

Each congressional district shall have a total population that is as nearly equal as practicable to the total population of the state reported in the federal census

divided by the total number of districts to be established. Each state House of Representatives and state Senate district shall have a total population that does not vary by more than three percent from the total population of the state reported in the federal census divided by the total number of districts to be established for such house.

SECTION 3. District maps.

The Commission shall prepare for public comment three alternate maps for all state districts and three alternate maps for all federal districts based on the number of inhabitants. Districts shall not, when viewed on a statewide basis, unduly favor or disfavor any political party. To the extent practicable, the Commission shall establish districts using the criteria set forth in the following order of descending priority:

- A. Districts shall be contiguous, bounded by an unbroken line, and consisting of undivided components that connect at more than a single point.
- B. Districts shall not deny or abridge the right to vote on account of race or language.
- C. Districts shall not divide counties or cities, except to the extent required to satisfy the requirements of Section 2 or subsections (A)-(E) of this Section.
- D. Districts shall be reasonably compact.
- E. Districts shall promote competition among political parties, where reasonably feasible after satisfaction of the preceding criteria.

SECTION 4. Public hearing and comments.

The Commission shall conduct at least one hearing in each congressional district and shall publicly release the three alternate maps for all state districts and three alternate maps for all federal districts for public comment at least thirty days before the first hearing. In addition, any revised maps shall be publicly released at least thirty days prior to a final vote on adoption. All maps released by the Commission, including any revised maps, shall be accompanied by a written report that explains the Commission's basis for the districts.

SECTION 5. Apportionment.

No later than November 1, 2023 and subsequently November 1 immediately following each federal census, the Commission shall reapportion, report, and certify to the Secretary of State the district for each seat in the United States House of Representatives and the General Assembly, setting forth the population, boundaries, and map of each district. The apportionment shall become effective unless a proceeding for review is filed with the Supreme Court within thirty days of certification, in which case the apportionment shall become effective thirty days after the Commission reports and certifies to the Secretary of State any revision necessary to comply with the mandate of the Supreme Court.

SECTION 6. Fiscal Matters.

Panelists and Commissioners are eligible for reimbursement of expenses reasonably related to the discharge of their imperative duties and a per diem of

up to \$200, which amount may be increased by the General Assembly upon an affirmative majority vote. The Commission shall be entitled to funding in amounts sufficient to discharge its imperative duties. The General Assembly shall appropriate moneys for (i) the years 2023 and 2024 (ii) the fiscal year in which the federal census is performed and (iii) the fiscal year immediately following the federal census, in such amounts as are necessary for the Commission to accomplish its tasks, but in no event shall such appropriations for each Commission's tenure total less than \$750,000. To the extent the Commission requires moneys to discharge its imperative duties prior to the convening of the legislative session in which the General Assembly can next appropriate moneys, the Commission shall be entitled to and shall receive moneys from the Constitutional Officers Fund or its successor fund in such amounts necessary to discharge its imperative duties until the General Assembly duly appropriates moneys to the Commission.

(3) Article 8, Section 5 of the Constitution of Arkansas is repealed and amended to read as follows:

Mandamus to compel the Commission to act.

The Supreme Court shall have original jurisdiction to compel the Chief Justice, the panel, the Secretary of State, and Commission by mandamus to perform their respective duties on the application of any citizen and taxpayer.

- (4) Each and every reference to "The Board of Apportionment" in the Constitution of Arkansas is repealed and replaced with "The Citizens Redistricting Commission."
- (5) Arkansas Code Annotated sections 7-2-101 through 105 are repealed.

(6) The provisions of this Amendment are severable, and if any part or provision hereof is held invalid by a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect any other part or provision of this Amendment.